

## San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Citizens' Advisory Committee

# **MEETING MINUTES**

## Tuesday, April 15, 2025 5:30 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. 525 Golden Gate Ave., 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor Tuolumne Conference Room

## MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY OBSERVE AND PARTICIPATE VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE SOFTWARE

## Meeting Recording Link

https://sfwater.zoom.us/rec/share/60BiJXod1h-A5p5HQ3h50WqEnquHUJ6UREpVzHU\_0gALnCchf7KKO7qgIa2UXBwq.4IAWJ\_7SozfOcb n0

Meeting Recording Passcode

355430

**Mission:** The purpose of the SFPUC CAC is to provide recommendations to the SFPUC General Manager, the SFPUC Commission, and the Board of Supervisors regarding the agency's long-term strategic, financial, and capital improvement plans (Admin. Code Article XV, Sections 5.140 - 5.142)

Members: Eliahu Perszyk Vice Chair (M-Large Water User) Cal Law (D1) VACANT (D2) Sally Chen (D3) Douglas Jacuzzi (D4) Scott Brown (D5) Barklee Sanders (D6) Elizabeth Steele Teshara (D7)

Amy Nagengast (D8) VACANT (D9) VACANT (D10) Jennifer Clary (D11) Maika Pinkston (M-Environmental Org.) VACANT (M-Regional Water Customers) Jodi Soboll (M-Engineering/Financial) Andrea Baker (B-Small Business) VACANT (B-Environ. Justice)

# D = District Supervisor appointed, M = Mayor appointed, B = Board President appointed

Staff Liaisons: Lexus Moncrease and Lupita Garcia Staff Email for Public Comment: <a href="mailto:cac@sfwater.org">cac@sfwater.org</a>

## **ORDER OF BUSINESS**

## 1. Call to Order and Roll Call at 5:45 pm

Members present at roll call (9): Perszyk, Chen, Jacuzzi, Sanders, Steele Teshara, Nagengast, Clary, Pinkston, Soboll.

Members absent (3): Law, Brown, Baker.

Staff/Presenters: dr. christian h. bijoux, Michael Giorgis, Ashlye Wright, Caroline Brossard, Commissioner Vice President Arce.

**OUR MISSION:** To provide our customers with high-quality, efficient, and reliable water, power and sewer services in a manner that values environmental and community interests and sustains the resources entrusted to our care.

Daniel L. Lurie Mayor

Kate H. Stacy President

Joshua Arce Vice President

Avni Jamdar Commissioner

Steve Leveroni Commissioner

Dennis J. Herrera General Manager



Members of the Public: Marry Butterwick, Nancy Arbuckle, Peter Drekmeier, Aaron Herbert.

#### 2. Approve February 18, 2025, Minutes

A motion was made (Clary) and seconded (Soboll) to approve the February 18, 2025, Minutes.

Approved without objection.

Public Comment: None.

#### 3. Report from the Chair

- Welcome members, staff, and the public
- Ohlone Tribal Land Acknowledgement
- Links to the meeting recording will now be made available in the minutes moving forward
- Commissioner Arce thanked the CAC for the opportunity to return and commented he took a lot from the conversation from the previous meeting where the priority issue was around the Treasure Island (TI) resolution authored by Members Sanders and Member Soboll, and unanimously supported by the CAC. At that meeting, Commissioner Arce commented he took note of the questions asked, the importance of the issue and committed to returning every meeting until there was a response in writing from the SFPUC. Immediately after the meeting, he brought this directly to SFPUC leadership and the Power enterprise and is grateful to have had the chance to work to get a better understanding with the agency at the highest level. Today, he has an answer in writing and expresses gratitude to the agency, Staff, General Manager (GM) Herrera, and Assistant General Manager (AGM) Hale for understanding the importance of having something in writing and while not every question nor component of the resolution is answered, the memo does provide a helpful overview of background and elements that describe what we can do with respect to issue happening on TI. As a recap, there were 23 power outages last year, nearing record of 26 which occurred in 2018. From staff, he's learned industry best practice is no more than 2 outages per year and TI is experiencing 2 a month. The memo states the SFPUC has the ability to offer ideas and ways to build upon a system that was considered at the end of its lifespan in the late 1990s before the body overseeing TI, Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) was formed in 1997 and is the owner of the grid, the SFPUC does not own the grid. The SFPUC is a contractor to 85% of the gird, 15% are SFPUC customers which are the residents who moved into the new facilities on the island where the SFPUC is providing power through the Hetch Hetchy Clean Power program. Redevelopment is ongoing and most of the work that needs to be done in our opinion to address the outages is going to be absolute replacement of the grid which is determined by TIDA. The legacy housing comprised of 450 units in 125 units which is known as the legacy housing are most impacted by the outages and a lot of the work done are trying to provide "band-aid" solutions to the residents such as passing out backup portable batteries, durable medical equipment for outage support during outages. There are significant investments and fixes that can be made and since the writing of the memo which was March 17, 2025, the SFPUC received approval on a proposal that was put in front of TIDA which is SFPUC recommends building an express feeder to connect a newly built switchyard to the legacy housing costing \$400,000 dollars and when the SFPUC

presents solutions to fix and provide increased reliability, TIDA needs to approve it and then SFPUC does the work and page 3 provides a list of recommendations that we've made over the past 10 years and work that has been approved and the SFPUC has conducted. For this proposal, the work is going to be completed this year, but we don't have an exact date. The SFPUC has also recommended to build an additional feeder to provide an alternative electrical route which TIDA declined because they indicated they're working with the developer to do the same work, and this will be completed Summer 2025.

- **Member Soboli** commented this is great and would like to see this go a step further. A lot of work has been done in the past few years, but it has had a minimal impact where there are still many outages occurring, and it may have been worse if this work was not done. The work on the main lines is great and it is going to help, however, the report does speak that outages still occur because of the local distribution system that is beyond its useful lifespan and asks for an analysis to be done on what the outages and power failures in the past 5 years and see what is then done to get it running to see if the SFPUC could implement a preventative model rather than reactive.
- **Member Sanders** commented he appreciates the update that has been provided and the resiliency improvements that were provided were already known from other information shared. The biggest issue is to improve the resiliency on the legacy housing, and he was told the new switchyard switch gear was installed for legacy housing residents and there is prioritization for new residents rather than current residents and this was done by design and asked if the dates that are being mentioned in the report hard deadlines.
- **Commissioner Vice President Arce** responded his understanding is the new \$400,000 express feeder is a new enhancement that is will be completed by the end of the year based on conversations with staff doing the work. Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) declined the additional feeder because they have a developer onsite doing the work.
- **Chair Perszyk** commented like any SFPUC project, things could arise that pushes that schedule out but as of now, this is the anticipated schedule.

Public Comment:

- **Peter Drekmeier** from the Tuolumne River Trust commented he listened to the meeting when Commissioner Arce reported to the other commissioners and thought he did a great job at conveying the interest and concerns of the CAC and it is great that he followed up to his commitment of elevating the issue and reporting back to the CAC. It is refreshing to see a commissioner so engaged and while there is more work to get done, the fact that this is an elevated issue will produce some results and thanked Commissioner Arce.
- 4. Public Comment: Members of the public may address the Committee on matters that are within the Committee's jurisdiction and are not on today's agenda.
  - Nancy Arbuckle, a San Francisco citizen, and a water ratepayer commented the SFPUC is basing their decisions about our water on flawed data, and they are harming ratepayers and the environment as a result. The flawed data they are working with are their demand

projections and it should be based on actual water usage. We know that demand for water has declined dramatically over the past 30 years and San Franciscans are conservers since we value our environment. The other flawed data is around risk projections and the design drought makes no sense. She asked the CAC to demand the SFPUC to make accurate risks projections and support the Bay Delta plan because the flawed assumptions are harming rate payers where SFPUC reports show that half of bills are going to pay off debt and that is mad management to run a utility. The SFPUC is hoarding water unreasonable, and their strategy is a crude one: hoard water and then spill. This strategy does not help rate payers nor the salmon population.

- Mary Butterwick, a longtime resident of San Francisco in District 7 commented they have a personal connection to the Tuolumne River, the source of their drinking water and a responsibility to do what they can to support a function aquatic ecosystem in the Tuolumne. Last year, the Sacramento Superior Court ruled in favor of the State Water Board's 2018 Bay Dental Plan update which included in-stream flow standards for the Tuolumne, and it is time to drop opposition and ensure flows in the Tuolumne are consistent with the State's adopted standards. The fall-run Chinook salmon are in desperate need of increased flows and the proposed Tuolumne River Voluntary agreement cannot achieve the objectives of the Bay Delta Plan primarily because it produces little in the way of new protected instream flows. The claim that one can produce more fish with less water is contrary to science and common sense. They urge the CAC to review the SFPUC's extremely conservative 8.5-year design drought plan which has an approximate 8,000-year return interval and asks the SFPUC reduce the length of the design drought by one year, apply realistic demand projections and present these results to the public. These actions would facilitate a meaningful dialogue on in-stream flows that are consistent with the State adopted standards and the environmental standards of most San Francisco residents and may reduce the expense to ratepayers of acquiring new alternative water supplies.
- 5. Presentation and Discussion: <u>Trust and Transparency: Racial Equity</u> <u>Updates Rooted in Organizational Development and Improvement</u>, christian h. bijoux, Ph.D., MPH., MBA, Chief Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion Officer, SFPUC

Presentation:

- SFPUC Citizens' Advisory Committee Racial Equity Update
- Agenda
- 2023 Racial Equity Survey: Coming back to our "Why?"
- 2023 Racial Equity Survey: Key Takeaways
- Strategic Initiatives: Mentoring Program
- 2024 Mentoring Program Launch
- 2025 Mentoring Program Update
- Strategic Initiatives: Leadership Training
- Strategic Initiatives: Career Pathway Visibility
- Strategic Initiatives: Focus on Qualitative Data
- Strategic Initiatives: Professional Development

- Inclusive Excellence Professional Development
- The Path Forward Advancing Strategic Initiatives
- Thank you

#### Discussion:

• **Chair Perszyk** asked what metrics are being applied and the reasoning behind the shift from quantitative to qualitative data.

Staff bijoux responded they are being applied, and an example is when constructing professional development session, they are not a one size fits all. The usual way to gauge success around professional development is look at the quantitative steps like how many people attended the session, looking at a scale from 1 to 5 and these don't tell much. Instead, what we want to know is when you come to the session, are you applying it and the ways we can tell is asking questions such as are you having more conversations with your manager, do you feel more comfortable approaching them, do you have more difficult conversations. These are the qualitative data points that help us understand whether this is working. When it comes to racial equity and justice work, the numbers are misleading. We continue to prioritize qualitative data because it helps us make modifications to the professional development sessions both for executive leaders and general staff. We do monthly professional development series for the agency that was based on qualitative information across the agency that we would have never learned had we focused on quantitative data.

• **Member Jacuzzi** asked how improvement in perception is evaluated and how did the agency get to 17%.

Staff bijoux responded the 17% is based on the pulse survey where approximately 45% of the agency staff completed. One of the basics the team looked at is seeing the number of people who are having conversations about topics they traditionally avoided, and that changes the conversations that come up on supervisory and management team meetings. The quantity of people who told us they are feeling different at work has increased and the quality of what has increased is the truth such as engagement. In the survey, one of the questions centers around respect and this number also increased reflecting people feel more respected because we can engage in critically necessary conversations even if we disagree because there is an environment that facilitates these conversations. For this work you need both gualitative and guantitative data, however, the gualitative far outweighs the quantitative as you need to know and see how people are feeling, how the environment is different, and you don't need numbers to tell you when someone is uncomfortable and doesn't want to be there.

• **Member Nagengast** asked how many field staff are participating in the mentorship program.

**Staff Wright** responded that one of the pain points is trying to reach them and making sure they feel included. During the initial extended pilot, there were more participants in as the mentees but this time around, more came in as the mentors.

**Staff bijoux** further responded they are engaging in what is called the Trust and Transparency tour where they are sharing pain points. Last week, they did a session where they asked field staff why they didn't participate and what was so difficult. The response was they don't have time because field work is very different because of compliance regulations and safety. Now, we must think more innovatively on how to bring them in and asking supervisors for any potential ideas. It's not to say that mentorship isn't happening, as it is happening in pockets, and we just need to find a way to make it more systematic and roll it out into other areas.

 Member Nagengast asked how the racial equity team is funded and if people are embedded in enterprises.

**Staff bijoux** responded there are racial equity leads for every enterprise and bureau where they meet monthly. Staff Giorgis, Wright, Brossard, and himself are agency wide. Prior to the two racial equity contracts that took time to formalize, they operated out of the General Manager's budget.

 Member Sanders commented the Trump Administration is going after Racial Equity work and asked if how the SFPUC is being impacted and what the overall response is.

**Chair Perszyk** further asked how Federal funding is impacted the SFPUC.

Staff bijoux responded it currently hasn't impacted us yet. When they were constructing this, there were a team of Prop 9 and Civil Rights Attorneys by background to make sure that the agency was prepared for something like this. Nothing of this is new. The work the team has been doing in the past 2 years is looking at it from a community development component putting us ahead of some of our counterparts in preparation for something like this. What we've put in place is the trust from people due to the conversations rather than focusing on the policies and procedures so that once resistance happens, it is the people who are going to have to support this and say it has brought people together and this currently stands true at the agency - more people do believe this work has brought them together. The way the Executive Orders are structured in terms of language is they are using it as an avenue to remove funding from anyone who potentially has engagement and we've had conversations with the Office of Racial Equity, Human Rights Commission, so that everyone is taking the necessary precautions and are prepared to respond.

 Member Soboll asked what types of things go into a guidebook to help people mentor.

**Staff Wright** responded they tell mentees this program is for you and make it what you want it to be. The guidebook is a resource to refer to and it is a starting place if you are not sure where to move from. In the book, there are some concepts basic foundations of the programs and tools and resources.

**Staff bijoux** further responded the guidebook was created as an integration of how we evaluate leaders and questions people can ask and it is not written in the perspective of think about this as a partnership, not a mentor/mentee relationship.

Public Comment: None

6. Presentation and Discussion: <u>How To Write Effective Resolutions</u>, Jennifer Clary, CAC Member

\*Due to time constraints, this presentation was postponed to the next Full CAC meeting.

# 7. Staff Report

• The link to the meeting's recording will now be made available in the minutes moving forward.

Public Comment: None.

# 8. SFPUC Communications

- SFPUC Wildfire Mitigation Plan 2024
- <u>Capital Financing Plan FY 2024-25</u>
- Quarterly Audit and Performance Report, FY 2023-24, Q4
- Hazards and Climate Resilience Plan 2025 Update
- Water Enterprise
  - o Water Supply Conditions Update (September 3, 2024)
  - o Water Enterprise Capital Improvement Program Report, FY 2023-24, Q4
  - Hetch Hetchy Capital Improvement Program Report, FY 2023-24, Q3
  - o Alternative Water Supply Annual Progress Report
  - o Alternative Water Supply Planning Annual Progress Report
  - o 2009 Water Supply Agreement Quarterly Update
  - o Onsite Water Reuse Program Update, FY 2022-23
  - o Recent Wastewater Enterprise Bond Sale Results
  - Supplemental Appropriation of Earthquake Safety and Emergency Response (ESER) 2010 and 2014 General
    - **Obligation Bonds Interest Earnings**
  - <u>Water System Improvement Program Annual Report</u>
- Wastewater Enterprise
  - o <u>Water Enterprise Capital Improvement Program Update, FY</u> 2023-24, Q3
- Power Enterprise
  - o CleanPowerSF Update, FY 2023-24, Q4
  - o PG&E Interconnection Report, FY 2023-24, Q4

Public Comment: None

## 9. Future Agenda Items and Resolutions

• CAC Advance Calendar

Public Comment:

• **Peter Drekmeier** commented he loves the idea of discussing affordability and encourages the CAC to invite Dave Warner to present because he knows so much about the budget and affordability and has an unbiased approved.

# 10. Announcements/Comments Please visit <u>www.sfpuc.org/cac</u> for confirmation of the next scheduled meeting, agenda, and materials.

Public Comment: None

## 11. Adjournment at 7:12 pm

For more information concerning the agendas, minutes, and meeting information, please visit <u>www.sfwater.org/cac</u>. For more information concerning the CAC, please contact via email at <u>cac@sfwater.org</u> or by calling (415) 517-8465.

## **Disability Access**

The following services are available on request 48 hours prior to the meeting; except for Monday meetings, for which the deadline shall be 4:00 p.m. of the last business day of the preceding week: For American sign language interpreters or the use of a reader during a meeting, a sound enhancement system, and/or alternative formats of the agenda and minutes, please contact Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465 or our TTY at (415) 554-3488 to make arrangements for the accommodation. Late requests will be honored, if possible.

In order to assist the City's efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical-based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. Individuals with chemical sensitivity or related disabilities should call our accessibility hotline at (415) 554-6789.

# LANGUAGE ACCESS

Per the Language Access Ordinance (Chapter 91 of the San Francisco Administrative Code), Chinese, Spanish and or Filipino (Tagalog) interpreters will be available upon requests. Meeting Minutes may be translated, if requested, after they have been adopted by the Committee. Assistance in additional languages may be honored whenever possible. To request assistance with these services please contact Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465, or <u>cac@sfwater.org</u> at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. Late requests will be honored if possible.

## 語言服務

根據三藩市行政法第91章"語言服務條例",中文、西班牙語和/或菲律賓語口譯服務在有 人提出要求後會提供。翻譯版本的會議記錄可在委員會後要求提供。其他語言協助在可 能的情況下也可提供。請於會議前至少48小時致電 (415) 517-8465 或電郵至 [cac@sfwater.org] Lexus Moncrease 提出口譯要求。逾期要求,在可能狀況下會被考 慮。

# ACCESO A IDIOMAS

De acuerdo con la Ordenanza de Acceso a Idiomas *"Language Access Ordinance"* (Capítulo 91 del Código Administrativo de San Francisco *"Chapter 91 of the San Francisco Administrative Code"*) intérpretes de chino, español y/o filipino (tagalo) estarán disponibles de ser requeridos. Los minutos podrán ser traducidos, de ser requeridos, luego de ser aprobados por la comité. La asistencia en idiomas adicionales se tomará en cuenta siempre que sea posible. Para solicitar asistencia con estos servicios favor comunicarse con Lexus Moncrease al (415) 517-8465, o <u>cac@sfwater.org</u> por lo menos 48 horas antes de la reunión. Las solicitudes tardías serán consideradas de ser posible.

#### **PAG-ACCESS SA WIKA**

Ayon sa Language Access Ordinance (Chapter 91 ng San Francisco Administrative Code), maaaring mag-request ng mga tagapagsalin sa wikang Tsino, Espanyol, at/o Filipino (Tagalog). Kapag hiniling, ang mga kaganapan ng miting ay maaring isalin sa ibang wika matapos ito ay aprobahan ng komite. Maari din magkaroon ng tulong sa ibang wika. Sa mga ganitong uri ng kahilingan, mangyaring tumawag sa Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465, o <u>cac@sfwater.org</u> sa hindi bababa sa 48 oras bago mag miting. Kung maari, ang mga late na hiling ay posibleng pagbibigyan.

#### Lobbyist Registration and Reporting Requirements

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code §2.100] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220 San Francisco, CA 94102, Phone: (415) 252-3100/Fax: (415) 252-3112, Email: ethics.commission@sfgov.org.

Know your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils, and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, by mail to Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 San Francisco, CA 94102-4683; by telephone 415-554-7724, by Fax 415-554-7854, or by email: sotf@sfgov.org

The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.